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Sanchez, Rodzandra (COE)

From: Diaz-Greco, Gilma M. (COE)

Sent: Friday, March 01, 2019 3:37 PM

To: Sanchez, Rodzandra (COE)

Subject: INQ 19-24, Brent Latham, Mayor, North Bay Village, (Voting Conflict

Attachments: INQ 19-24 Latham.pdf; INQ 19-24 Latham- Cover ltr.pdf; Latham Request.pdf

INQ 19-24 Lathan

Opinion Attached

Gilma (Mimi) Diaz-Greco
Staff Attorney

Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust
19 W. Flagler Street, Suite 820
Miami, FL 33130
Tel: (305) 579-2594
Fax: (305) 579-0273
gdiazgr@miamidade.gov
www.facebook.com/MiamiDadeEthics
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MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Brent Latham
Mayor, North Bay Village

FROM: Jose Arrojo, Executive Director
Commission on Ethics

SUBJECT: INQ 19-24, Voting Conflict, Section 2-11.1(d)

DATE: February 25, 2019

CC: All COE Legal Staff

Thank you for contacting the Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust and requesting
our guidance regarding a potential voting conflict.

Facts: Carlos Noriega was formerly employed by North Bay Village as its Police Chief. Chief
Noriega was terminated from his position and in response he filed a civil action against North Bay
Village. The case is described as a whistleblower action alleging wrongful termination because
the Chief was investigating alleged criminal acts by North Bay Village elected officials or their
family members.

North Bay Village is considering a negotiated settlement of the action and it is due to be voted
upon by the Commission.

Mayor Brent Latham was present for a widely attended Christmas party in December 2018 during
which he was photographed in a group setting with Chief Noriega and several other guests.

Issue: Does a prohibited voting conflict exist that would prevent Mayor Latham from participating
or voting on the potential settlement of the civil action brought by Chief Noriega against North
Bay Village because he and Chief Noriega may have socialized in the past and on at least one
occasion both attended a holiday social function and were photographed together as members of
a larger group?

Discussion: Section 2-11.1(d) of the County Ethics Code, Voting Conflicts, prohibits an elected
official from voting and/or participating in a matter presented to the elected body if he or she has
any prohibited relationship with a person or entity that would be or might be, directly or indirectly
affected by the action of the Commission. The relationships listed in the ordinance include: officer,
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director, partner, of counsel, consultant, employee, fiduciary, beneficiary, creditor and debtor. The
ordinance also prohibits the official

This conflict voting prohibition is stricter than the state law standard codified in Section 112.3143

shall vote in an official capacity upon any measure which would inure to his or her special private

See INQ 14-86). The County standard does not require a definite or measurable

private gain or loss and may apply where there is a reasonable possibility or expectation of such

an effect. (See RQO 15-04)

Given the enhanced conflict voting prohibition contained in the Ethics Code, circumstances that
do not meet the State standard for a voting conflict could still create a voting conflict under the
County ordinance in instances where an official might, directly or indirectly, profit or be enhanced
by a vote.

We have repeatedly opined in the past that the issue of voting conflict for elected officials is
narrowly described as whether the official might, directly or indirectly, profit or be enhanced by
the item in question. Put another way, the analysis should focus on whether the proposed
Commission action will present any likelihood that the official would, personally or
professionally, be affected in any way by the item in a manner distinct from the public generally.

From the fact pattern that you have provided, you do not have a prohibited financial or employment
relationship with Chief Carlos Noriega, the party that would be affected by the Commission action.
Additionally, you will not, directly or indirectly, profit or be enhanced by the item nor is there any
likelihood that you will, personally or professionally, be affected in any way by the action.

Opinion: The voting conflict provisions contained in Section 2-11.1(d) of the Miami-Dade Ethics
Code do not create a prohibited voting conflict scenario regarding your participation or vote on
the matter relating to settlement of a claim made by former Chief Carlos Noriega against North
Bay Village.

This opinion is limited to the facts as you and County staff presented them to the Commission on
Ethics and is limited to an interpretation of the County Ethics Code only and is not intended to
interpret state laws. Questions regarding state ethics laws should be addressed to the Florida
Commission on Ethics.
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INQs are informal ethics opinions provided by the legal staff after being reviewed and approved
by the Executive Director. INQs deal with opinions previously addressed in public session by the
Ethics Commission or within the plain meaning of the County Ethics Code. RQOs are opinions
provided by the Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust when the subject matter is
of great public importance or where there is insufficient precedent. While these are informal
opinions, covered parties that act contrary to the opinion may be referred to the Advocate for
preliminary review or investigation and may be subject to a formal Complaint filed with the
Commission on Ethics and Public Trust.
















